

Oklahoma Health Care Authority

The Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) values your feedback and input. It is very important that you provide your comments regarding the proposed rule change by the comment due date. Comments can be submitted on the OHCA's [Proposed Changes Blog](#).

OHCA COMMENT DUE DATE: February 16, 2018

The proposed policy was presented at the September 5, 2017 Tribal Consultation and the November 15, 2017 Medical Advisory Committee as an Emergency Rule. The proposed Permanent Rule is scheduled to be presented to the OHCA Board of Directors on March 22, 2018.

Reference: APA WF # 17-12

SUMMARY:

Wage Enhancement Policy Revisions - The proposed revisions revoke policy that refers to wage enhancement.

LEGAL AUTHORITY:

The Oklahoma Health Care Authority Board; The Oklahoma Health Care Authority Act, Section 5003 through 5016 of Title 63 of Oklahoma Statutes; 63 O.S. 2011, Sections 5022 and 5022.1.

RULE IMPACT STATEMENT:

STATE OF OKLAHOMA OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY

TO: Tywanda Cox
Federal and State Policy

FROM: Sasha Teel
Federal and State Authorities

SUBJECT: Rule Impact Statement
APA WF # 17-12

A. Brief description of the purpose of the rule:

The proposed revisions remove wage enhancement language and requirements for specified employees in nursing facilities (NF) serving adults and intermediate care facilities for individual with intellectual disabilities (ICFs/IIDs). The

revisions are necessary to comply with changes in Oklahoma state statute which repeal title 63 section 5022 and 5022.1. The change in state statute became effective July 1, 2017. The federal minimum wage and the change in rate setting methodology increased the wages for employees of NFs serving and ICFs/IIDs, resulting in the policy being obsolete.

- B. A description of the classes of persons who most likely will be affected by the proposed rule, including classes that will bear the cost of the proposed rule, and any information on cost impacts received by the agency from any private or public entities:

This will not affect any classes because the rate setting process has already been modified over time to include direct care costs to nursing facilities.

- C. A description of the classes of persons who will benefit from the proposed rule:

No classes of persons will benefit from this proposed rule change.

- D. A description of the probable economic impact of the proposed rule upon the affected classes of persons or political subdivisions, including a listing of all fee changes and, whenever possible, a separate justification for each fee changes:

There is no probable economic impact and there are no fee changes associated with the rule change for the above classes of persons or any political subdivision.

- E. The probable costs and benefits to the agency and to any other agency of the implementation and enforcement of the proposed rule, the source of revenue to be used for implementation and enforcement of the proposed rule, and any anticipated effect on state revenues, including a projected net loss or gain in such revenues if it can be projected by the agency:

Agency staff has determined that the proposed rule is budget neutral.

- F. A determination of whether implementation of the proposed rule will have an economic impact on any political

subdivisions or require their cooperation in implementing or enforcing the rule:

The proposed rule will not have an economic impact on any political subdivision or require their cooperation in implementing or enforcing the rule.

- G. A determination of whether implementation of the proposed rule will have an adverse effect on small business as provided by the Oklahoma Small Business Regulatory Flexibility Act:

The agency does not anticipate that the proposed rule will have an adverse effect on small businesses.

- H. An explanation of the measures the agency has taken to minimize compliance costs and a determination of whether there are less costly or non-regulatory methods or less intrusive methods for achieving the purpose of the proposed rule:

The agency has taken measures to determine that there are no other legal methods to achieve the purpose of the proposed rule. Measures included a formal public comment period and tribal consultation.

- I. A determination of the effect of the proposed rule on the public health, safety and environment and, if the proposed rule is designed to reduce significant risks to the public health, safety and environment, an explanation of the nature of the risk and to what extent the proposed rule will reduce the risk:

The proposed rule should not have any effect on the public health, safety or environment. The proposed rule is not designed to reduce significant risks to the public health, safety or environment.

- J. A determination of any detrimental effect on the public health, safety and environment if the proposed rule is not implemented:

OHCA does not believe there is a detrimental effect on the public health and safety if the rule is not passed.

- K. The date the rule impact statement was prepared and if modified, the date modified:

The rule impact statement was prepared December 12, 2017.

**TITLE 317. OKLAHOMA HEALTH CARE AUTHORITY
CHAPTER 30. MEDICAL PROVIDERS-FEE FOR SERVICE**

SUBCHAPTER 5. INDIVIDUAL PROVIDERS AND SPECIALTIES

PART 9. ~~LONG TERM~~LONG-TERM CARE FACILITIES

317:30-5-131.1. Wage enhancement [REVOKED]

~~(a) Definitions. The following words and terms, when used in this Section, have the following meaning, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:~~

~~(1) "Employee Benefits" means the benefits an employer provides to an employee which include:~~

~~(A) FICA taxes,~~

~~(B) Unemployment Compensation Tax,~~

~~(C) Worker's Compensation Insurance,~~

~~(D) Group health and dental insurance,~~

~~(E) Retirement and pensions, and~~

~~(F) Other employee benefits (any other benefit that is provided by a majority of the industry).~~

~~(2) "Enhanced" means the upward adjusted rate as required by Title 63, Section 5022 of Oklahoma Statutes.~~

~~(3) "Enhancement" means the upward adjusted rate as required by Title 63, Section 5022 of Oklahoma Statute.~~

~~(4) "Regular employee" means an employee that is paid an hourly/salaried amount for services rendered, however, the facility is not excluded from paying employee benefits.~~

~~(5) "Specified staff" means the employee positions listed in the Oklahoma Statutes under Section 5022, Title 63 that meet the requirements listed in 42 CFR Section 483.75(e)(1)-(8).~~

~~(b) Enhancement. Effective May 1, 1997, the OHCA provides a wage and salary enhancement to nursing facilities serving adults and Intermediate Care Facilities for Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities required by Title 63, Section 5022 of Oklahoma Statutes. The purpose of the wage and salary enhancement is to provide an adjustment to the facility payment rate in order for facilities to reduce turnover and be able to attract and retain qualified personnel. The maximum wage enhancement rates that may be reimbursed to the facilities per diem include:~~

~~(1) Three dollars and fifteen cents (\$3.15) per patient day for NFs,~~

~~(2) Four dollars and twenty cents (\$4.20) per patient day for standard private ICFs/IID, and~~

~~(3) Five dollars and fifteen cents (\$5.15) per patient day for specialized private ICFs/IID.~~

~~(c) **Reporting requirements.** Each NF and ICF/IID is required to submit a Nursing and Intermediate Care Facilities Quarterly Wage Enhancement Report (QER) which captures and calculates specified facility expenses. The report must be completed quarterly and returned to OHCA no later than 45 days following the end of each quarter. QERs must be filed for the State Fiscal Year (SFY) which runs from July 1 to June 30. The Oklahoma Health Care Authority reserves the right to recoup all dollars that cannot be accounted for in the absence of a report. The QER is designed to capture and calculate specified facility expenses for quarterly auditing by the OHCA. The report is used to determine whether wage enhancement payments are being distributed among salaries/wages, employee benefits, or both for the employee positions listed in (1) through (8) of this subsection. Furthermore, the OHCA reserves the right to recoup all dollars not spent on salaries, wages, employee benefits, or both for the employee positions. The specified employee positions included on the QER are:~~

- ~~(1) Licensed Practical Nurse (LPN),~~
- ~~(2) Nurse Aide (NA),~~
- ~~(3) Certified Medication Aide (CMA),~~
- ~~(4) Social Service Director (SSD),~~
- ~~(5) Other Social Service Staff (OSSS),~~
- ~~(6) Activities Director (AD),~~
- ~~(7) Other Activities Staff (OAS), and~~
- ~~(8) Therapy Aide Assistant (TAA).~~

~~(d) **Timely filing and extension of time.**~~

~~(1) **Quarterly reports.** Quarterly reports are required to be filed within 45 days following the end of each quarter. This requirement is rigidly enforced unless approved extensions of time for the filing of the quarterly report is granted by OHCA. Filing extensions not to exceed 15 calendar days may be granted for extraordinary cause only. A failure to present any of the items listed in (A)-(D) of this paragraph will result in a denial of the request for an extension. The extension request will be attached to the filing of the report after the request has been granted. For an extension to be granted, the following must occur.~~

~~(A) An extension request must be received at the Oklahoma Health Care Authority on or before the 30th day after the end of the quarter.~~

~~(B) The extension must be addressed on a form supplied by the Health Care Authority.~~

~~(C) The facility must demonstrate there is an extraordinary reason for the need to have an extension.~~

~~An extraordinary reason is defined in the plain meaning of the word. Therefore, it does not include reasons such as the employee who normally makes these requests was absent, someone at the facility made a mistake and forgot to send the form, the facility failed to get documents to some third party to evaluate the expenditures. An unusual and unforeseen event must be the reason for the extension request.~~

~~(D) The facility must not have any extension request granted for a period of two years prior to the current request.~~

~~(2) **Failure to file a quarterly report.** If the facility fails to file the quarterly report within the required (or extended) time, the facility is treated as out of compliance and payments made for the quarter in which no report was filed will be subject to a 100% recoupment. The overpayment is recouped in future payments to the facility immediately following the filing deadline for the reporting period. The full overpayment is recovered within a three month period. The Oklahoma Health Care Authority reserves the right to discontinue wage enhancement payments until an acceptable QER (quarterly enhancement report) is received. In addition to the recoupment of payments, the matter of noncompliance is referred to the Legal Division of the OHCA to be considered in connection with the renewal of the facility's contract.~~

~~(3) **Ownership changes and fractional quarter report.** Where the ownership or operation of a facility changes hands during the quarter, or where a new operation is commenced, a fractional quarter report is required, covering each period of time the facility was in operation during the quarter.~~

~~(A) Fractional quarter reports are linked to the legal requirement that all facility reports be properly filed in order that the overall cost of operation of the facility may be determined.~~

~~(B) Upon notice of any change in ownership or management, the OHCA withholds payments from the facility until a fractional quarter report is received and evaluation of payment for the wage enhancement is conducted. In this case the QER is due within 15 days of the ownership or management change.~~

~~(4) **Pay periods and employee benefits reflected in the QER.** Salaries and wages are determined by accruing the payroll to reflect the number of days reported for the month. Unpaid salaries and wages are accrued through the quarter. Any salaries and wages accrued in the previous quarter and paid in the current quarter are excluded. Employee benefits are determined by accruing any benefits paid to coincide with the~~

reporting month. Unpaid employee benefits are accrued through the quarter. Any employee benefits accrued in the previous quarter and paid in the current quarter are excluded. To be included as an allowable wage enhancement expenditure, accrued salaries, wages and benefits must be paid within forty-five (45) days from the end of the reporting quarter.

(5) **Report accuracy.** Errors and/or omissions discovered by the provider after the initial filing/approved extension are not considered grounds for re-opening/revisions of previously filed reports. Furthermore, errors and/or omission discovered by the provider after the initial filing/approved extension can not be carried forward and claimed for future quarterly reporting periods.

(6) **False statements or misrepresentations.** Penalties for false statements or misrepresentations made by or on behalf of the provider are provided at 42 U.S.C. Section 1320a-7b which states, in part, "(a) Whoever... (2) at any time knowingly and willfully makes or cause to be made any false statement of a material fact for use in determining rights to such benefit or payment... shall (i) in the case of such a statement, representation, concealment, failure, or conversion by any person in connection with furnishing (by that person) of items or services for which payment is or may be made under this title (42 U.S.C. c1320 et. seq.), be guilty of a felony and upon conviction thereof fined not more than \$25,000 or imprisoned for not more than five years or both, or (ii) in the case of such a statement, representation, concealment, failure, or conversion by any other person, be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction thereof fined not more than \$10,000 or imprisoned for not more than one year, or both."

(7) **Audits, desk and site reviews.**

(A) Upon receipt of each quarterly report a desk review is performed. During this process, the report is examined to insure it is complete. If any required information is deemed to have been omitted, the report may be returned for completion. Delays that are due to incomplete reports are counted toward the 45 day deadline outlined in (c) of this Section. At that time the mathematical accuracy of all totals and extensions is verified. Census information may be independently verified through other sources. After completion of the desk review, each report is entered into the OHCA's computerized data base. This facilitates the overall evaluation of the industry's costs.

(B) Announced and/or unannounced site reviews are conducted at a time designated by the OHCA. The purpose

of site reviews is to verify the information reported on the QER(s) submitted by the facility to the OHCA. Errors and/or omissions discovered by the OHCA upon the completion of a site review is immediately reflected in future payment(s) to the facility. The OHCA makes deficiencies known to the facility within 30 calendar days. A deficiency notice in no way prevents the OHCA from additionally finding any overpayment and adjusting future payments to reflect these findings.

(8) Appeals process.

(A) If the desk or site review indicates that a facility has been improperly paid, the OHCA will notify the facility that the OHCA will rectify the improper payment in future payments to the facility. Improper payments consist of an overpayment to a facility. The facility may appeal the determination to recoup an alleged overpayment and/or the size of the alleged overpayment, within 20 days of receipt of notice of the improper payment from the OHCA. Such appeals will be Level I proceedings heard pursuant to OAC 317:2-1-2(c)(2). The issues on appeals will be limited to whether an improper payment occurred and the size of the alleged improper payment. The methodology for determining base period computations will not be an issue considered by the administrative law judge.

(B) Certain exceptional circumstances, such as material expenses due to the use of contract employees, overtime expenses paid to direct care staff, or changes within classes of staff may have an effect on the wage enhancement payment and expense results. Facilities may demonstrate and present documentation of the affects of such circumstances before the administrative law judge.

(e) Methodology for the distribution of payments/adjustments. The OHCA initiates a two part process for the distribution and/or recoupment of the wage enhancement.

(1) Distribution of wage enhancement revenue. All wage enhancement rates are added to the current facility per diem rate. Facilities receive the maximum wage enhancement rate applicable to each facility type.

(2) Payment/recoupment of adjustment process. Initially, all overpayments resulting from the Fourth Quarter of SFY-1997 and the First Quarter of SFY-1998 audits will be deducted from the first month's payment of the Third Quarter of SFY-1998 (January-1998). The Fourth and First Quarter of SFY-1997 and SFY 1998 audit results will be averaged to determine the adjustment. All overpayments as a result of the Second Quarter of SFY-1998 audit will be deducted from the first

~~month's payment of the Fourth Quarter of SFY-1998 (April-1998). Audit results will determine whether or not a facility is utilizing wage enhancement payments that are being added to the facility's per diem rate. When audit results for a given quarter after the Second Quarter of SFY-1998 (October, November, and December 1997) reflect an adjustment, recoupments will be deducted from the facility. Any adjustments calculated will not be recouped during the quarter in which the calculation is made, rather, they will be recouped during the following quarter. The recoupments, as a result of an adjustment, will not exceed the wage enhancement revenue received for the quarter in which the audit is conducted. Recoupments will be included in the facility's monthly payment and will not exceed the three month period of the quarter in which it is being recouped.~~

~~(f) **Methodology for determining base year cost.** The information used to calculate Base Year Cost is taken from actual SFY-1995 cost reports submitted, to the OHCA, by the NFs and ICFs/MR that will be receiving a wage enhancement. A Statewide Average Base Cost is calculated for facilities that did not submit a cost report for SFY-1995. Newly constructed facilities that submit a partial year report are assigned the lower of the Statewide Average Base Cost or actual cost. The process for calculating the Base Year Cost, the Statewide Average Base Cost, and the process for newly constructed facilities is determined as follows.~~

~~(1) **Methodology used for determining base year cost.** The methodology for determining the Base Year Cost is determined by the steps listed in (A) through (E) of this paragraph.~~

~~(A) Regular employee salaries are determined by adding the salaries of LPNs, NAs, CMAs, SSDs, OSSS, ADs, OAS, and TAAs.~~

~~(B) Percentage of benefits allowed are determined by dividing total facility benefits by total facility salaries and wages.~~

~~(C) Total expenditures are determined by multiplying the sum of regular employee salaries by a factor of one plus the percentage of benefits allowed in (B) of this subparagraph.~~

~~(D) Base Year PPD Costs are determined by dividing total expenditures, in (3) of this subparagraph by total facility patient days. This information is used to determine statewide average base year cost.~~

~~(E) Inflated Base Year Costs are determined by multiplying Base Year Cost, in (C) of this subparagraph by the appropriate inflation factors. Base Year Expenditures were adjusted from the midpoint of the base year to the~~

midpoint of the rate year using the moving rate of change forecast in the Data Resources, Inc., (DRI) "HCFA Nursing Home without Capital Market Basket" Index as published for the fourth quarter of calendar year 1995. The OHCA uses this same index (DRI) for subsequent years as it becomes available and is appropriate.

(2) Methodology used for determining Statewide Average Base Cost. A Statewide Average Base Cost is calculated for all facilities that did not submit a cost report, to the OHCA, for SFY-1995. The steps listed in (A) through (C) of this paragraph are applied to determine the Base Cost in the absence of actual SFY-1995 cost report information.

(A) Statewide Average Base Year PPD Costs are determined by adding Base Year PPD Cost, calculated in (1)(D) of this subsection, for all facilities that submitted SFY-1995 cost reports, the sum of this calculation is then divided by the number of facilities that submitted cost reports.

(B) Inflated Base Year PPD Costs are determined by multiplying Statewide Base Year PPD Cost by the appropriate inflation factors. Statewide Base Year PPD Cost was adjusted from the midpoint of the base year to the midpoint of the rate year using the moving rate of change forecast in the Data Resources, Inc., (DRI) "HCFA Nursing Home without Capital Market Basket" Index as published for the fourth quarter of calendar year 1995. The OHCA uses this same index (DRI) for subsequent years as it becomes available and is appropriate.

(C) The facilities base cost is determined by multiplying the facilities' current quarter census by the inflated statewide average PPD costs calculated in (B) of this unit.

(g) Methodology for determining wage enhancement revenue and expenditure results. The methodology for determining the facilities' wage enhancement revenue and expenditures results are calculated in (1) through (3) of this paragraph.

(1) Wage enhancement revenue. Total wage enhancement revenue received by the facility for the current quarter is calculated by multiplying the facilities total paid Medicaid days for the current quarter by the facilities wage enhancement rate. The Oklahoma Health Care Authority adjusts the computations and results when actual paid Medicaid data for the reporting quarter becomes available.

(2) Wage enhancement expenditures. Total wage enhancement expenditures are determined in a four step process as described in (A) through (D) of this paragraph.

(A) Total current quarter allowable expenses are calculated. Salaries and wages of specified staff are

~~totalled and added to the applicable percent of customary employee benefits and 100% of the new employee benefits.~~

~~(B) Base period expenditures are calculated. An occupancy adjustment factor is applied to the quarterly average base period cost to account for changes in census.~~

~~(C) Current quarter wage enhancement expenditures are calculated by subtracting allowable base period expenditures (see (B) of this subparagraph) from total current quarter allowable expenses (see (A) of this subparagraph).~~

~~(D) Total wage enhancement expenditures are calculated by adding current quarter wage enhancement expenditures (see (C) of this subparagraph) to prior period wage enhancement expenditures carried forward.~~

~~(3) **Wage enhancement revenue and expenditure results.** Wage enhancement revenue and expenditure results are determined by comparing total wage enhancement revenue (see (1) of this paragraph) to total wage enhancement expenditures (see (2)(D) of this paragraph). Revenue exceeding expenses is subject to recoupment. Expenses exceeding revenue are carried forward to the next reporting period as a prior period wage enhancement expenditure carry over.~~

~~(4) Due to rate increases and increases in the federal minimum wage, wage enhancements to nursing facilities and ICFs/MR are no longer paid.~~

317:30-5-131.2. Quality of care fund requirements and report

(a) **Definitions.** The following words and terms, when used in this Section, have the following meaning, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

(1) **"Annualize"** means that the calculations, including, for example, total patient days, gross revenue, or contractual allowances and discounts, is divided by the total number of applicable days in the relevant time period.

(2) **"Direct-Care Staff"** means any nursing or therapy staff who provides direct, hands-on care to residents in a nursing facility and intermediate care facility for individuals with intellectual disabilities pursuant to Section 1-1925.2 of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes, pursuant to OAC 310:675-1 et seq., and as defined in subsection (c) of this Section.

(3) **"Major Fraction Thereof"** means an additional threshold for direct-care-staff-to-resident ratios at which another direct-care staff person(s) is required due to the peak in-house resident count exceeding one-half of the minimum direct-care-staff-to-resident ratio pursuant to Section 1-1925.2 of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes.

~~(4) **"Minimum wage"** means the amount paid per hour to~~

~~specified staff pursuant to Section 5022.1 of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes.~~

~~(5)~~**(4) "Nursing Facility and Intermediate Care Facility for Individuals with Intellectual Disabilities"** means any home, establishment, or institution or any portion thereof, licensed by the Oklahoma State Department of Health (OSDH) as defined in Section 1-1902 of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes.

~~(6)~~**(5) "Peak In-House Resident Count"** means the maximum number of in-house residents at any point in time during the applicable shift.

~~(7)~~**(6) "Quality of Care Fee"** means the fee assessment created for the purpose of quality care enhancements pursuant to Section 2002 of Title 56 of the Oklahoma Statutes upon each nursing facility and intermediate care facility for individuals with intellectual disabilities licensed in this Statestate.

~~(8)~~**(7) "Quality of Care Fund"** means a revolving fund established in the State Treasury pursuant to Section 2002 of Title 56 of the Oklahoma Statutes.

~~(9)~~**(8) "Quality of Care Report"** means the monthly report developed by the Oklahoma Health Care Authority (OHCA) to document the staffing ratios, total patient gross receipts, total patient days, and minimum wage compliance for specified staff for each nursing facility and intermediate care facility for individuals with intellectual disabilities licensed in the Statestate.

~~(10)~~**(9) "Service rate"Rate"** means the minimum direct-care-staff-to-resident rate pursuant to Section 1-1925.2 of Title 63 of Oklahoma Statutes and pursuant to OAC 310:675-1 et seq.

~~(11) "Specified staff" means the employee positions listed in the Oklahoma Statutes under Section 5022.1 of Title 63 and as defined in subsection (d) of this Section.~~

~~(12)~~**(10) "Staff Hours workedWorked by Shift"** means the number of hours worked during the applicable shift by direct-care staff.

~~(13)~~**(11) "Staffing ratios"Ratios"** means the minimum direct-care-staff-to-resident ratios pursuant to Section 1-1925.2 of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes and pursuant to OAC 310:675-1 et seq.

~~(14)~~**(12) "Total Gross Receipts"** means all cash received in the current Quality of Care Report month for services rendered to all residents in the facility. Receipts should include all Medicaid, Medicare, private pay, and insurance including receipts for items not in the normal per diem rate. Charitable contributions received by the nursing facility are not included.

~~(15)~~(13) **"Total Patient Days"** means the monthly patient days that are compensable for the current monthly Quality of Care Report.

(b) **Quality of care fund assessments.**

(1) The OHCA was mandated by the Oklahoma Legislature to assess a monthly service fee to each licensed nursing facility in the ~~State~~state. The fee is assessed on a per patient day basis. The amount of the fee is uniform for each facility type. The fee is determined as six percent (6%) of the average total gross receipts divided by the total days for each facility type.

(2) Annually, the Nursing Facilities Quality of Care Fee shall be determined by using the daily patient census and patient gross receipts report received by the OHCA for the most recent available twelve months and annualizing those figures. Also, the fee will be monitored to never surpass the federal maximum.

(3) The fee is authorized through the Medicaid State Plan and by the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services regarding waiver of uniformity requirements related to the fee.

(4) Monthly reports of Gross Receipts and Census are included in the monthly Quality of Care Report. The data required includes, but is not limited to, the Total Gross Receipts and Total Patient Days for the current monthly report.

(5) The method of collection is as follows:

(A) The OHCA assesses each facility monthly based on the reported patient days from the Quality of Care Report filed two months prior to the month of the fee assessment billing. As defined in this subsection, the total assessment is the fee times the total days of service. The OHCA notifies the facility of its assessment by the end of the month of the Quality of Care Report submission date.

(B) Payment is due to the OHCA by the 15th of the following month. Failure to pay the amount by the 15th or failure to have the payment mailing postmarked by the 13th will result in a debt to the State of Oklahoma and is subject to penalties of ~~10%~~10 percent (10%) of the amount and interest of ~~1.25%~~1.25 percent (1.25%) per month. The Quality of Care Fee must be submitted no later than the 15th of the month. If the 15th falls upon a holiday or weekend (Saturday-Sunday), the fee is due by 5 p.m. ~~(Central Standard Time)~~, Central Standard Time (CST), of the following business day (Monday-Friday).

(C) The monthly assessment, including applicable penalties and interest, must be paid regardless of any appeals action requested by the facility. If a provider fails to pay the OHCA the assessment within the time frames noted

on the second invoice to the provider, the assessment, applicable penalty, and interest will be deducted from the facility's payment. Any change in payment amount resulting from an appeals decision will be adjusted in future payments. Adjustments to prior months' reported amounts for gross receipts or patient days may be made by filing an amended part C of the Quality of Care Report.

(D) The Quality of Care fee assessments excluding penalties and interest are an allowable cost for OHCA ~~Cost Reporting~~cost reporting purposes.

(E) The Quality of Care fund, which contains assessments collected including penalties and interest as described in this subsection and any interest attributable to investment of any money in the fund, must be deposited in a revolving fund established in the State Treasury. The funds will be used pursuant to Section 2002 of Title 56 of the Oklahoma Statutes.

(c) Quality of care direct-care-staff-to resident-ratios.

(1) All nursing facilities and intermediate care facilities for individuals with intellectual disabilities (ICFs/IID) subject to the Nursing Home Care Act, in addition to other state and federal staffing requirements, must maintain the minimum direct-care-staff-to-resident ratios or direct-care service rates as cited in Section 1-1925.2 of Title 63 of the Oklahoma Statutes and pursuant to OAC 310:675-1 et seq.

(2) For purposes of staff-to-resident ratios, direct-care staff are limited to the following employee positions:

- (A) Registered Nurse
- (B) Licensed Practical Nurse
- (C) Nurse Aide
- (D) Certified Medication Aide
- (E) Qualified Intellectual Disability Professional (ICFs/IID only)
- (F) Physical Therapist
- (G) Occupational Therapist
- (H) Respiratory Therapist
- (I) Speech Therapist
- (J) Therapy Aide/Assistant

(3) The hours of direct care rendered by persons filling non-direct care positions may be used when those persons are certified and rendering direct care in the positions listed in OAC 317:30-5-131.2(c)(2) when documented in the records and time sheets of the facility.

(4) In any shift when the direct-care-staff-to-resident ratio computation results in a major fraction thereof, direct-care staff is rounded to the next higher whole number.

(5) To document and report compliance with the provisions of this subsection, nursing facilities and ~~intermediate care facilities for individuals with intellectual disabilities~~ ICFs/IID must submit the monthly Quality of Care Report pursuant to subsection (e) of this Section.

~~(d) **Quality of care minimum wage for specified staff.** All nursing facilities and private intermediate care facilities for individuals with intellectual disabilities receiving Medicaid payments, in addition to other federal and state regulations, must pay specified staff not less than in the amount of \$6.65 per hour. Employee positions included for purposes of minimum wage for specified staff are as follows:~~

- ~~(1) Registered Nurse~~
- ~~(2) Licensed Practical Nurse~~
- ~~(3) Nurse Aide~~
- ~~(4) Certified Medication Aide~~
- ~~(5) Other Social Service Staff~~
- ~~(6) Other Activities Staff~~
- ~~(7) Combined Social Services/Activities~~
- ~~(8) Other Dietary Staff~~
- ~~(9) Housekeeping Supervisor and Staff~~
- ~~(10) Maintenance Supervisor and Staff~~
- ~~(11) Laundry Supervisor and Staff~~

~~(e)~~(d) **Quality of care reports.** All nursing facilities and intermediate care facilities for individuals with intellectual disabilities must submit a monthly report developed by the OHCA, the Quality of Care Report, for the purposes of documenting the extent to which such facilities are compliant with the minimum direct-care-staff-to-resident ratios or direct-care service rates.

(1) The monthly report must be signed by the preparer and by the ~~Owner, authorized Corporate Officer, or Administrator~~owner, authorized corporate officer, or administrator of the facility for verification and attestation that the reports were compiled in accordance with this section.

(2) The ~~Owner~~owner or authorized ~~Corporate Officer~~corporate officer of the facility must retain full accountability for the report's accuracy and completeness regardless of report submission method.

(3) Penalties for false statements or misrepresentation made by or on behalf of the provider are provided at 42 U.S.C. Section 1320a-7b.

(4) The Quality of Care Report must be submitted by 5 p.m. (CST) on the 15th of the following month. If the 15th falls upon a holiday or a weekend (Saturday-Sunday), the report is due by 5 p.m. (CST) of the following business day (Monday -

Friday).

(5) The Quality of Care Report will be made available in an electronic version for uniform submission of the required data elements.

(6) Facilities must submit the monthly report through the OHCA Provider Portal.

(7) Should a facility discover an error in its submitted report for the previous month only, the facility must provide to the ~~Long-Term~~Long-term Care Financial Management Unit written notification with adequate, objective, and substantive documentation within five business days following the submission deadline. Any documentation received after the five business day period will not be considered in determining compliance and for reporting purposes by the OHCA.

(8) An initial administrative penalty of \$150.00 is imposed upon the facility for incomplete, unauthorized, or non-timely filing of the Quality of Care Report. Additionally, a daily administrative penalty will begin upon the OHCA notifying the facility in writing that the report was not complete or not timely submitted as required. The \$150.00 daily administrative penalty accrues for each calendar day after the date the notification is received. The penalties are deducted from the Medicaid facility's payment. For ~~100%~~100 percent (100%) private pay facilities, the penalty amount(s) is included and collected in the fee assessment billings process. Imposed penalties for incomplete reports or non-timely filing are not considered for OHCA ~~Cost-Reporting~~cost reporting purposes.

(9) The Quality of Care Report includes, but is not limited to, information pertaining to the necessary reporting requirements in order to determine the facility's compliance with subsections (b) and (c) of this Section. Such reported information includes, but is not limited to: total gross receipts, patient days, available bed days, direct care hours, Medicare days, Medicaid days, number of employees, monthly resident census, and tenure of certified nursing assistants, nurses, directors of nursing, and administrators.

(10) Audits may be performed to determine compliance pursuant to subsections (b), ~~(c), and (d)~~and (c) of this Section. Announced/unannounced on-site audits of reported information may also be performed.

(11) Direct-care-staff-to-resident information and on-site audit findings pursuant to subsection (c), will be reported to the OSDH for their review in order to determine "willful" non-compliance and assess penalties accordingly pursuant to Title 63 Section 1-1912 through Section 1-1917 of the

Oklahoma Statutes. The OSDH informs the OHCA of all final penalties as required in order to deduct from the Medicaid facility's payment. Imposed penalties are not considered for OHCA Cost Reporting purposes.

(12) If a Medicaid provider is found non-compliant pursuant to subsection (d) based upon a desk audit and/or an on-site audit, for each hour paid to specified staff that does not meet the regulatory minimum wage of \$6.65, the facility must reimburse the employee(s) retroactively to meet the regulatory wage for hours worked. Additionally, an administrative penalty of \$25.00 is imposed for each non-compliant staff hour worked. For Medicaid facilities, a deduction is made to their payment. Imposed penalties for non-compliance with minimum wage requirements are not considered for OHCA ~~Cost Reporting~~ cost reporting purposes.

(13) Under OAC 317:2-1-2, ~~Long Term Care~~ long-term care facility providers may appeal the administrative penalty described in (b)(5)(B) and (e)(8) and (e)(12) of this section.

(14) Facilities that have been authorized by the OSDH to implement flexible staff scheduling must comply with OAC 310:675-1 et seq. The authorized facility is required to complete the flexible staff scheduling section of Part A of the Quality of Care Report. The ~~Owner, authorized Corporate Officer, or Administrator~~ owner, authorized corporate officer, or administrator of the facility must complete the flexible staff scheduling signature block, acknowledging their OSDH authorization for ~~Flexible Staff Scheduling~~ flexible staff scheduling.